
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

      OF THE TOWNSHIP OF JACKSON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

DECEMBER 6, 2006 

 
The December 6, 2006 Regular Meeting of the Jackson Township Board of Adjustment was called to order by Chairman 
Vincent Sgro at 7:04 p.m. with a salute to the flag by all present.  Attorney Sean Gertner read the Open Public Meetings 
Act Statement. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Jeffrey Bowen     Peter Maher 

Barry Calogero     Kevin DiGesu, Alt. #1  
Stephen Costanzo     Joy Ann Harmer, Vice Chair 
Diana LaBianca, Secretary    Vincent Sgro, Chairman 
 

ABSENT:  Glen Bouthillette, Alt. #2 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Richard Megill, Director of Planning and Zoning 
   Sean Gertner, Board Attorney 
   Mark Muraczewski, Planner 
   Steven McCrystal, Court Reporter 
 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTIONS 

 
Recording Secretary Janice Kisty announced the following resolutions and named those eligible to vote: 
 
2006-100 – Block 118.06, Lot 13 – Massey – Resolution of approval.  Motion to approve by MAHER/Calogero.  

YES:  Maher, Calogero, Costanzo, DiGesu, Sgro. 
 
2006-101 – Block 85.02, Lot 1 – Geeter – Resolution of approval 
2006-102 – Block 66.01, Lot 7.13 – Mennona - Resolution of approval 
2006-103 – Block 109.01, Lot 58 – Smith – Resolution of approval 
Motion to approve the foregoing by DiGESU/LaBianca.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, Costanzo, LaBianca, DiGesu, 
Harmer, Sgro.  
 

PAYMENT OF VOUCHER 

 

Motion to approve the vouchers for Court Reporter and Recording Secretary for tonight’s meeting by 
HARMER/Calogero.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, Calogero, Costanzo, LaBianca, Harmer, Sgro. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Motion to approve the minutes of November 1, 2006 by DiGESU/Harmer.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, Costanzo, 
LaBianca, DiGesu, Harmer, Sgro. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Mr. Megill announced Application #4 and #5, both for Mark Properties would be carried to January 3, 2007.  Mr. 
Gertner added there would be no further notice.  Also, the meeting on December 20 will be held to discuss Jackson 
Commons and bring the current Board members up to speed on the specifics of the application.  Secondly, the Board 
received a memo recommending an increase in some fees charged by ordinance.  Fees were last updated in 1992; a 
significant amount of time has passed without an increase.  The Council is looking for an approval from the Board to 
express its support of the proposal.  Mr. Sgro noted there is no significant increase to homeowners.  Mr. Megill said the 
$30 charge for a zoning certificate is the only impact for homeowners.  Developers and site plan applicants will bear 
most of the increase.  Mr. Megill said he compared fees to five other towns and tried to do a comparison where taxpayers 
are not paying for everything.  He is trying to stop the taxpayers from paying anything.  The town is not mandated to do 
that, but it is a goal.  Motion to support the increase in fees by CALOGERO/Costanzo.  Unanimous among those 
present. 
 

The professionals for the Township were sworn by Steven McCrystal:  Mark Muraczewski, Wayne McVicar, and 

Richard Megill.  Each stated his affiliation with the township. 

 

MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION 

 

 
19 PETROLEUM DIST. (CITGO SITE PLAN #600) 

BLOCK: 54 LOT: 1.01   LOCATION: WHITESVILLE ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING TEMPORARY RELIEF OF CONDITION IN THE RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL THAT REQUIRES 
THE PROPOSED PROJECT BE CONNECTED TO PUBLIC SEWER.  

 

Mr. Gertner noted they are seeking temporary relief.  Lou Felicetta, Esq. represented the applicant and said they are 
asking for an interpretation of the previous resolution of approval.  They want to modify the resolution to allow them to 
apply for building permits prior to the ability to connect to public sewer service.  They can’t connect at this time but will 
eventually.  They have a hold harmless agreement with the town.  They want to begin construction and the sewer lines 
are there, but they can’t connect until the pump station is operational.  They offered to be subject to no issuance of a 
certificate of occupancy until it is operational.  Mr. Megill said this is unusual; one of the concerns is liability to the town 
that once the building is constructed and they request a certificate of occupancy, and they can’t connect, does the town 
have to provide the sewer?  Mr. Gertner asked what the norm is and why this is a problem.  Mr. Megill said the applicant 
bears the cost of the system. Mr. Felicetta said the sewer line is there, and Mr. Maher agreed.  Mr. Megill asked if they 
can they hook into it, and Mr. McVicar said it’s there but not improved yet, so they can’t connect.  Mr. Sgro said it is a 
matter of time till it’s operational.  Mr. McVicar said he did not know the procedure of the MUA.  Applicant, Felix 
Bruselovsky, President of 19 Petroleum Distributors, was sworn.  He said the sewer line is in, and the MUA said the 
pump station is not up and running.  The MUA has no problem with them starting construction until the station is  



Page 2 - Zoning Board Minutes of December 6, 2006  

 
running.  They can use a frat tank, above ground, where the waste goes in and it is pumped out.  They would be looking 
for a temporary certificate of occupancy until they are connected to the sewer.  Mr. Felicetta said they want to get a 
building permit and the applicant said he needs six months to put up his building.  Mr. Megill said there are no houses 
hooked up to that system:  Megan’s Run would be the first.  Mr. Muraczewski said it won’t be for awhile per his 
conversations with the MUA.  Mr. Gertner said this is a new board and they don’t know why the previous board required 
sewer hookup per the resolution.  Mr. Sgro said it takes 6-8 months to build, and then they’ll put in a temporary system 
to handle the sewage.  Mr. McVicar said this is the first time he heard of the temporary system.  He thought the building 
would sit idle.  The applicant said the MUA has no problem with frat tank.  Mr. Felicetta said they would like to obtain 
the building permit, build the building, and then if a temporary solution is needed, the MUA would allow the temporary 
tank.  Ms. Harmer asked if they have anything in writing from the MUA saying this is OK because the pump station will 
take a while.  Mr. Megill explained how the Pinelands works for the benefit of the Board, stating if an approval is 
missing, the Pinelands will not allow the building to go up.  You can’t do anything without their approval.  Mr. Maher 
said they would like to see the engineer’s testimony on this.  Mr. Felicetta asked for the ability of a permit to be issued so 
they can go to the Pinelands.  Mr. McVicar asked if the hold harmless agreement will be allowed by the Pinelands.  Mr. 
Felicetta said it may.  Mr. Maher wanted testimony on the tank.  Mr. Felicetta said it is only necessary if the project is 
done and they can’t use the sewer lines. They understand they can’t get the certificate of occupancy until they are hooked 
up to the sewer.  Mr. Calogero asked if there is a person at the MUA who will attest to this.  Mr. Sgro suggested they 
come to the meeting on December 20th to provide the letter from the MUA.  Mr. Gertner said they should interface with 
the Board professionals and the Board wants information on the tank.  The board can decide whether they can operate on 
a temporary certificate of occupancy. The Board should understand the tank operation.  Mr. Felicetta said all they are 
asking for is the ability to get a building permit.  Mr. Calogero asked if they would agree to construct the building but not 
operate until connected to public sewer.  Mr. McVicar said the Ocean County Board of Health, Pinelands and MUA all 
will have input.  He said the Board can look at it as one project or separate it and allow construction but not operate 
without the sewer.  Mr. Felicetta agreed, and said if they could just construct, they could come back at a later date to 
discuss it further.  Mr. McVicar said they may not accept the hold harmless agreement at the Pinelands.  They need a 
hold harmless letter with the town.  Ms. Harmer asked what happens to the building if they construct it and don’t have 
the necessary approvals, and she said the Board doesn’t know all the testimony from before, and nothing was said about 
the tank; now it may go there.  She asked for further documentation so the Board can understand.  She asked why start 
building something if you may not use it.  Mr. Felicetta said they could come back on December 20.  Mr. McVicar 
suggested they discuss this proposal with the other approving agencies to see if the amendment to the approving 
resolution would be honored; if they find objections, this may not be necessary.  Mr. Maher asked if they could invite a 
representative from the MUA to the December 20 meeting, and the applicant said they would invite someone or provide 
a letter. 

Request carried to December 20, 2006. 

 

APPLICATIONS 

 

1. APPLICANT: WILLIAM CAMPBELL  (VARIANCE # 2608) 

 BLOCK: 126.36  LOT: 4    ZONE: R-15 

 LOCATION: 10 HARTFORD ROAD 

 
APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT AN IN-GROUND POOL 18’ X 36’, FILTER, HEATER 
AND 6 FT. SOLID FENCE IN FRONT YARD ON THIS CORNER LOT. 
 
William Campbell sworn.  He has a long, narrow lot, and the most usable areas are the sides of the lot.  He wants to 
place the fence 10’ from the street.  Mr. Calogero said he visited the lot and saw no problem with the request.   
 
PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward. 
Motion to close public session and approve the variance by CALOGERO/LaBianca.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, 
Calogero, Costanzo, LaBianca, Harmer, Sgro. 
 

2. APPLICANT: KEVIN BARTLEY (VARIANCE #2609) 

 BLOCK: 135.01  LOT: 18.09   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 422 BARTLEY ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT40 FENCE COLUMNS 28” x 28” x 70” HIGH AND A 
SHED 23’6” X 12’ 4” IN FRONT YARD ON THIS CORNER LOT.  
 
Kevin Bartley was sworn.  He wants to erect a 6’ fence on the corner of Hyson and Bartley Roads for safety reasons; this 
is a busy corner and he has children.  Board member Barry Calogero asked if he is a contractor and Mr. Bartley replied 
yes, he is an environmental contractor.  Mr. Calogero had concerns and said the columns are right near the sidewalk.  
There are 70 columns, six feet high and made of brick.  This is not a normal 6’ fence.  The columns are already 
constructed.  Wayne McVicar, Board engineer, said the survey included with the application is not to scale and the 
cement columns are located other than what is shown on the plan.  On Bartley Road, the columns are right up to the 
sidewalk and are in the right of way.  Mr. Calogero said there are 40 columns in a row and they block people’s vision.  
Mr. McVicar said they appear to be in the sight triangle.  He asked that a surveyor or engineer give plans to scale and 
identify the sight triangle to identify which columns are in it or not.  Mr. Megill said Mr. Bartley is here because there is 
a violation.  Mr. McVicar said a number of columns are in the sight triangle.  The Board has been generally agreeable to 
residents’ requests, but for this application he is not confident because they need to know the location of the structures to 
determine if they are in the sight triangle.  They cannot be approved at this point.  Mr. Maher said there are 70 columns, 
but the drawing said 48.  It is not accurate.  Mr. McVicar said they can request an accurate plan to show where the 
columns are.  Mr. Gertner said in most instances, applicants have requested an adjournment to rectify the discrepancy.  
Mr. Bartley said he needs to know what he should do.  Mr. Megill recommended what Mr. McVicar said about the 
accurate survey.  Mr. Calogero said the columns are a concern and probably must be torn down.  Mr. Gertner said 
applicant could request the adjournment; however, it does not stay the proceeding in municipal court.  If the columns are 
in violation, he must make sure they conform to the ordinance.  Mark Muraczewski, Township Planner, said he needs an 
accurate survey.  Mr. Megill said the Board has addressed enough corner lots to know how far away they want fencing or 
columns to be. Mr. McVicar suggested he go back to the surveyor he has to update where the posts are and an engineer 
to indicate the sight triangle.  They need to determine which ones are in violation.  Mr. Sgro asked Mr. Bartley to know 
what he is asking for before comes back.  Mr. Calogero asked the applicant if he asked for a permit to construct what is  



Page 3 - Zoning Board Minutes of December 6, 2006  

 
there now.  Mr. Bartley said he made the fence larger.  Mr. McVicar asked what happens if the Board takes action now.  
Mr. Gertner said one of the issues is his choice not to use his surveyor to show where the pillars are, and there is not 
enough information for the Board to make that decision.  Ignorance of the law is no excuse.  He is bound to know he 
needs to seek a permit from the town.  The Board of Adjustment tries to balance the needs of the municipality against the 
needs of a hardship.  Assuming the applicant does what he has to do before he comes back, at that point, the Board can 
accept his request or make a vote today.  If he withdraws his application today, he must reapply with a new application.  
This does not preclude a violation being issued.  We cannot advise him.  Mr. Calogero asked the professionals for their 
opinion if Mr. Bartley could remove half the posts.  Mr. McVicar said a number of posts are in violation, and using a 
rough scale, a number are in the sight triangle.  It must be done by an exact plan.  Mr. Sgro suggested the applicant 
withdraw his application and Mr. Bartley agreed.  Mr. Megill said his new application must be different from this one 
and Mr. Gertner agreed.  The applicant has heard enough to know it must be corrected.  The applicant stated for the 
record the application is withdrawn.    
 

Recess at 8:06 p.m.  Reconvene at  8:18 p.m. 

 
 

3. APPLICANT: JACOB & ROBIN MUCHNICK (VARIANCE #2610) 

 BLOCK: 70  LOT: 25.04   ZONE: R-2 

 LOCATION: 826 GREEN VALLEY ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT AN 18’ X 24’ SECOND STORY DECK WITH STAIRS 
17 FT. FROM THEIR SIDE YARD WHERE 30 FT. IS REQUIRED. 

 

Jacob Muchnick sworn.  He wants to replace a 16’ x 13’ deck destroyed by a tank removal contractor.  He wants to place 
it to within 17’ feet of the property line.  His is a flag-shaped lot.  Mr. Maher asked if it is behind the building and was 
told yes.  Mr. Muraczewski asked if he had pictures.  He did not have them with him, but he stated there were glass doors 
off the kitchen onto the deck that he had to board over for safety purposes.  Mr. Calogero confirmed that, stating the 
damage is consistent with what he said.  Mr. McVicar said the house is angled and contributes to the setback.  There is 
shrubbery that shields the neighbor. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward. 
Motion to close the public session and approve the variance by MAHER/Costanzo.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, 
Calogero, Costanzo, LaBianca, Harmer, Sgro.   
 

Application Number 7 was heard next; Mr. Sgro stepped down. 
 

4. APPLICANT: MARK PROPERTIES (MINOR SUBDIVISION # 1357) 

 BLOCK: 119.08  LOT: 1.01   ZONE: HC 

 LOCATION: RIDGEDALE AVENUE 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A MINOR SUBDIVISION FOR (2) LOTS WHICH RECEIVED PRIOR USE VARIANCE 
APPROVAL #2411 PER RESOLUTION # 2005-017. (CARRIED FROM THE NOVEMBER 1, 2006 MEETING) 

 

Previously carried to January 3, 2007 with no further notice. 

 

5. APPLICANT: MARK PROPERTIES (VARIANCE  #2602) 

 BLOCK: 118.04  LOT: 9    ZONE: R-9  

 LOCATION: SOUTH LAKEVIEW DRIVE 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING WHERE THE 
MINIMUM LOT SIZE IS 40,000 SQFT AND IS PROVIDING 36,300 SQFT. ALSO VARIANCE REQUIRED FOR 
LOT DEPTH 200 FT. REQUIRED AND PROVIDING 174 FT. (CARRIED FROM THE NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

MEETING) 

 

Previously carried to January 3, 2007 with no further notice. 

 

6. APPLICANT: HESS CORPORATION (SITE PLAN # 651) 

 BLOCK: 83  LOT: 50   ZONE: NC 

 LOCATION: 8 BENNETTS MILLS ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A PRELIMINARY AND FINAL SITE PLAN TO ADD AN 864 SF. CAR WASH TO THE 
EXISTING GASOLINE SERVICE STATION WHICH RECEIVED APPROVAL BY THE ZONING BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENT PER RESOLUTION #1998-60 AND 1999-28-1 (CARRIED FROM THE NOVEMBER 1, 2006 

MEETING) 

 

Donna Jennings represented this applicant.  The applicant provided their own court reporter, and Mr. McCrystal left the 
building.  Ms. Jennings said they are seeking approval to modify the Hess gas station to include the car wash.  The 
property is located in the Neighborhood Commercial zone.  Previous approvals to the site included the car wash; the 
Hess Express convenience store and gas station are there now.  The prior plans had a note saying they needed approval 
for the car wash, and if sewer was available they would have to hook up.  At the present time, no sewer service is 
available.  They need variances to put signs on an accessory building, they want a menu board and will go with the old 
sign package.  John Martinez, engineer and professional planner with the firm Kenderian Zilinski Associates, was sworn 
and his credentials accepted.  He showed a color rendering of the survey, marked A-1, that indicates the gas dispensing 
area, the convenience store and the existing driveways.  A twenty five foot conservation easement is in place from the 
original approval.  Three drainage basins are on site.  The original approval was for the existing gas station and 
convenience store, plus a 1,165 square foot car wash.  Hess is proposing to install that facility but on a smaller footprint.  
Exhibit A-2 is a color version of the site plan submitted.  The car wash is in the same location as previously approved.  
He showed Exhibit A-3, the site plan of the previously approved set of plans, and said the larger car wash is downsized 
by 300 square feet.  The vacuums are moved more to the center of the site, and three parking spaces will be constructed 
for that.  The septic field is unchanged.  There is no sanitary sewer available.  The car wash will be totally recycled water  



Page 4 - Zoning Board Minutes of December 6, 2006 

 
and will not go in the septic.  There are holding tanks underground for that.  The water goes into floor drains to go into 
one tank to the next to be filtered so the next car gets clean water.  A total of 5-6 gallons is actually used, less than what 
would be used at home.  They propose a dawn to dusk operation while the gas station is open 24 hours.  Regarding 
landscaping, they will add significantly more evergreens than what was originally proposed.   
 
Mr. McVicar referred to his review letter of 11/30/06.  The applicant will add a description of operations to the plan, and 
all else was agreed to by both the applicant and the Board engineer.  Regarding lighting, there is none on the carwash and 
two pole mounted lights on the driveways, two new and one relocation.   Regarding solid waste, Mr. Martinez noted 
there are two types, sediment pumped out by a vacuum truck twice per year, and trash in the trash enclosure emptied 
daily.  This information will be included on the plans, and he agreed to all other items. Outside agency approvals will be 
provided.  Mr. Muraczewski asked how many jobs are created and was told zero because it is unmanned.  The growth 
share ordinance does not apply to this application.  Mr. Maher asked about the parking and Mr. Martinez said three 
spaces will be added for the vacuums.  Mr. Maher said there is not enough parking there now with the UPS trucks 
coming in.  Mr. Bowen asked about traffic circulation, which was satisfactorily explained.  Ms. Jennings said there are 
11 banked parking spaces that could be built if needed, but green space will be given up.  Mr. Martinez said the 
landscaping could be relocated if the banked spaces are built.  Mr. Costanzo asked the distance from the exit and was 
told 50’, and there is stacking for 5 cars.  When asked about any hazard from black ice in the winter, Mr. Martinez 
replied that there are trench drains at the entrance and exit.  Some water does leave the facility, but most remains inside.  
The car wash will operate in all seasons and there are no freezing conditions inside the building.  Mr. Maher asked if 
they could provide a greater queue, but was told they can’t because of the septic field.  Ms. Jennings said the ordinance 
allows for 5 cars to stack.  Mr. DiGesu said if the facility is heated inside and not outside, won’t there be an icing 
condition, and Mr. Martinez said the manager would take precautions and Hess did not have this problem.  This is the 
first car wash in New Jersey; they have others in New York and Massachusetts.  Mr. Megill said the original site plan 
showed the exit on Bennetts Mills Road near the light allows a left turn, and that should be switched with the other exit 
further away from the intersection that does not allow a left turn.  The applicant agreed.  Mr. Gertner asked about the 
exiting garbage and was told there will be no new trash enclosure, only a receptacle by the vacuums and then it will be 
dumped.  Ms. Jennings noted the five variances for the record.  They are for signage:  Exhibit A-4 is the architectural 
plan showing 3 of the 4 signs, both car wash signs 8 square feet on the building, an exit sign over the door, and Exhibit 
A-5 was a color elevation of  A-2 that shows an enter sign on the building.  The fifth sign was a menu board placed as 
you enter the car wash for the various types of washes,  24 square feet.  Washes can be purchase at the pump, in the 
convenience store, or pay cash at the entrance.  There is a benefit to having the signage on the building, and it is not 
directed to the residential properties to the east and north.  A ‘Do Not Enter’ sign will also be placed at the car wash exit.  
 
The applicant agreed to construct the eight extra parking spaces and to switch the turning movement signs at both exits 
on Bennetts Mills Road. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward 
Motion to close the public session and approve the site plan for the car wash by HARMER/Costanzo.  YES:  
Maher, Bowen, Calogero, Costanzo, LaBianca, Harmer, Sgro.   

 

7. APPLICANT: JOSEPHINE & THOMAS SHARAC (VARIANCE # 2604) 

 BLOCK: 5.01  LOT: 4.03   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 603 REED ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING IN THE 3-ACRE 
ZONE AND IS PROVIDING 1 ACRE; ALSO NEEDS A VARIANCE FOR LOT DEPTH WHERE 400 FT. IS 
REQUIRED AND IS PROVIDING 200 FT. (CARRIED FROM THE NOVEMBER 1, 2006 MEETING) 

 

Attorney Denis Kelly represented this applicant.  William Kurtz with Josephine and Thomas Sharac sworn.  Mr. Kelly 
said the property is on Reed Road and is an undersized lot with 1 acre provided and requiring 3 acres.  William Kurtz of 
Kurtz Engineering described his credentials which were accepted.  Mr. Kurtz said they want to build a single family 
dwelling on the undersized lot.  They own the lot which pre-existed the zoning change of 2001.  It does not meet lot area 
or lot depth.  They will use private well and septic.  Soil logs have Ocean County Board of Health approval to construct a 
septic should this be approved.  The applicant made an effort to acquire adjoining property from adjacent property 
owners, there was no positive response.  Positive criteria needs include the surrounding properties which are consistent 
with what the applicant is proposing.  There is a ½ acre lot next door, 6 acres in a flag fashion around this one, and 10 
one-acre lots in a 200’ radius.  Twenty to twenty-five lots of one acre are in a 500’ radius.  The zoning changed in 2001 
but this lot is more consistent with the old zone requirements.  Negative criteria include the need for a variance for lot 
depth where they have 200’ and need 400’.  Although the lot does not meet dimensional requirements, it is similar to 
other lots in the area.  No bulk variances are associated with the setbacks; the house can be placed properly, and there are 
no environmental constraints and no detrimental effects as a result of construction of the dwelling.  They reviewed the 
Remington & Vernick letter which included clean-up items and they agreed to address all the concerns.  Mr. McVicar 
asked about the curbs and sidewalks and the fact that they are immediately to the east.  He recommended extending them 
here.  Mr. Kelly said the applicant would comply.  Mr. McVicar asked about the 6-acre lot, and Mr. Kelly said they 
attempted to purchase additional land and asked to sell this lot, but there was no willingness by that property owner to do 
either.  Mr. McVicar asked for the letter and Mr. Kelly said they sent the correspondence to the zoning office.  Regarding 
outside agencies, they have Board of Health and Soil Conservation approvals and others are pending which the applicant 
agreed to adhere upon any approval.  Mr. Muraczewski asked if the applicant is aware of the growth share ordinance.  He 
explained the applicant would be responsible for his share, or $25,000.00.  Bowen asked if the grown share ordinance is 
to slow down development and Mr. Muraczewski said no, it is for the township’s Mt. Laurel obligation.  Mr. Maher 
asked if single have to contribute and Mr. Muraczewski said this is true now, and the regulations were updated in 2004.  
Mr. Kelly agreed.  Mr. Megill asked that the flood zone be shown on the map to be submitted for building permits.  Mr. 
Calogero asked if he built the house behind him and was told no.  The six acres was part of this lot when it was built, but 
Mr. Megill added that was a long time ago.   
 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 
 
Warren Triano-Davis, 98 Reed Road, lives across the street.  This is an older development and this fits in, they all work 
together in the neighborhood and want it maintained as it is now.  They want this to go through.   
 



Page 5- Zoning Board Minutes of December 6, 2006 

 

 
Vincent Sgro, 618 Reed Road, stated he lives near these people, they are putting up a nice house, and he is in favor of it. 
 
PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED and Motion to approve by CALOGERO/Maher.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, Calogero, 
Costanzo, LaBianca, DiGesu, Harmer. 
 

Application Number 9 was heard next. 

 

 

8. APPLICANT: BARBARA SCHRANK-POYDA (USE VARIANCE # 2607) 

 BLOCK: 83  LOT: 23.03   ZONE: R-5 

 LOCATION: 406 BENNETTS MILLS ROAD 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A USE VARIANCE FOR A PET GROOMING AND DOGGIE DAY CARE BUSINESS 
ALSO ONE-EMPLOYEE STAY OVER AS NEEDED. THE CODE REQUIRES 5 ACRES FOR THIS AND IS 
PROVIDING 1 ACRE.  
 
Barbara Poyda and Laurie Nowak sworn.  Ms. Poyda handed pictures out to the Board which were marked A-1 and A-2.  
She is seeking a use variance to operate a pet grooming and doggie day care business with a provision to allow one 
employee to stay in the house overnight as needed.  The pictures show the dwelling and surrounding area.  The house 
next door is 300-400 feet away and 21 acres surrounds the subject home, so there is no one around.  To the left of the site 
is wetlands and the house to the right owns the 21 acres.  Ms. Poyda proposes to utilize cage-free boarding for the dogs.  
The house will be set up for the dogs to be able to stay overnight, like a home environment.  She proposes a maximum of 
10-12 dogs per day during the busy season.  This house has three bedrooms, a dining room and living room and is about 
1,400 square feet with a full basement.  No dogs will stay in the basement; it would be an indoor play area.  Ms. Poyda 
intends to have a meet and greet area, and depending how the dogs interact they will be placed together.  Mr. Sgro asked 
if this is a permitted use and was told it is a conditional permitted use.  Mr. Muraczewski said she has 1 acre, and 5 acres 
is required.  The house does not meet the requirements for the zone for setbacks, but it meets other requirements for the 
conditional use.  He recommends screening, and soundproofing is required inside.  Ms. Poyda said in a cage-free 
environment, there is less barking, and someone will be there all the time with the dogs.  They are not just sitting in a 
kennel where they may bark continuously.  There will be less stress on the dogs and they will be kept inside the house.  
Mr. Maher asked if a proposed church will be there and was told yes, it surrounds this property.  Mr. Calogero asked if 
the church is approved and was told not yet; they just purchased the property. 
 

PUBLIC SESSION OPENED 

 
Robin Staley, 403 Bennetts Mills Road was sworn.  She is a neighbor.  The definition of a kennel was read.  Ms. Staley 
asked if Ms. Poyda would need a kennel license and was told she is just boarding dogs and there will be no selling of 
dogs.  Mr. Megill said if there are more than five 5 licensed animals on the property you need a kennel license from the 
township.  If this use variance is approved, she gets that automatically.  Ms. Staley noted there is no fence in the front of 
the property and said that was a safety issue.  Ms. Poyda said the front porch will be gated and dogs will not be outside.  
They will go out in the backyard and that will be fenced.  Ms. Staley was concerned with the front of the house.  Ms. 
Poyda said the people will have to bring the dogs in on a leash.  She noted other boarding facilities are not fenced in the 
front. 
 
Mr. Joseph Sbano was sworn and suggested a fence in the front, stating a loose dog not familiar with the property is a 
danger. Noting the property is close to wetlands, he asked about waste disposal.  Ms. Poyda said the dogs won’t go in the 
woods.  Mr. Muraczewski said this lot is not in the wetlands buffer. 
 
Audrey DeGaster, 156 W. Commodore Blvd. was sworn and asked how many years Ms. Poyda is in the field, and was 
told she has a pet sitting business.  She said she never worked in a grooming shop or boarding facility.  Ms. DeGaster 
asked if she will be living in the home and was told no. Ms. DeGaster asked if 10-12 dogs would stay overnight, and Ms. 
Poyda said somebody will be saying overnight.  Ms. DeGaster asked what cage less boarding means and the fact that Ms. 
DeGaster has a similar business was discussed.  Cage free means no cages or kennels at any time.  Ms. DeGaster asked if 
Ms. Poyda will offer grooming and was told yes.  Ms. DeGaster said she is concerned about the safety of the animals.   
 

PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED 
 
Mr. Costanzo asked if the rear yard is fenced and was told there will be individual fence runs, eventually split for large 
and small dogs.  The house will be set up with one room for and office and overnight person.  Ms. Poyda described a 
home style environment, different from a traditional caged environment.  Mr. Bowen asked about waste disposal and was 
told she would use a waste disposal company that disposes of the pet waste daily.  She agreed that would be a condition 
of approval.  Bowen asked about the liquid waste and was told that goes into the ground.  Ms. Poyda testified she must 
hook up to city water in 180 days because she is commercial.  For the pet grooming, Mr. Megill indicated she will need a 
hair trap and the applicant was aware.   
 

Motion to approve by BOWEN/LaBianca with contingencies to limit the number of dogs to 12, hookup to city 

water, obtaining necessary permits, no front fence, and waste disposal per testimony.  The applicant is aware she 

must apply for site plan approval.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, Calogero, Costanzo, LaBianca, Harmer, Sgro. 
 

The Hess application will be heard next.  Recess at 9:28 p.m.  Mr. McCrystal was leaving as the applicant for Hess 

had their own court reporter.  The Board reconvened at 9:40 p.m.  

 
There was a discussion about the procedure to give the recording secretary the raise that was voted on during the 
November 1 meeting.  The Board made a recommendation the effective date would be the date of the vote.  Mr. Gertner 
will send a letter to the Council expressing the Boards wishes. 
 

The Hess application was heard next.   
 
 



Page 6- Zoning Board Minutes of December 6, 2006 

 
 

9. APPLICANT: JUNE POSNER (VARIANCE # 2612) 

 BLOCK: 113  LOT: 33.02   ZONE: R-3 

 LOCATION: 113 WILLOW DRIVE 

 

 

APPLICANT IS SEEKING A VARIANCE TO CONSTRUCT A SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING WHERE THE 
MINIMUM LOT SIZE IS 3 ACRE =130,000 SQFT. AND IS PROVIDING 35,547 SQ.FT. ALSO NEEDS VARIANCE 
FOR LOT WIDTH WHERE 150 IS REQUIRED AND APPLICANT IS PROVIDING 109.57 FT. 
 
Danielle Maschuci, Esq.,  of Bathgate, Wegner represents this applicant.  Imatz Smildzens, Professional Planner  for 
WSB Engineering gave his credentials, which were accepted.  Ms. Maschuci said two bulk variances for lot area and 
width are required.  The property contains a single family dwelling.  The applicant contacted adjacent property owners to 
try to buy additional property or sell them this property, and she has letters of no interest from the neighbors.  Mr. 
Smildzens said this lot is not out of character with the neighborhood.  It is all residential and some lots are comparable to 
this one.  This property pre-existed the current zone of R-3.  It was previously R-1 and does not meet lot size and width.  
Most lots are between one and one and a half acres.  In response to negative criteria, Mr. Smildzens said the variances 
can be granted without substantial detriment to the public good because it does not impair the zone plan or the zoning 
ordinance, nor does it go against the Master Plan allowing for residential uses.   
 
Mr. Maher asked who the owner is and was told June Posner.  Mr. Costanzo asked if the house will be built on the same 
footprint.  Mr. Smildzens stated she will demolish the existing home and build on a new footprint with a new septic.  A 
newer well will be kept.  The new structure will be centered and set back farther.  Mr. Costanzo asked if the septic 
location is acceptable.  Mr. McVicar said that is an outside agency approval.  Mr. Smildzens said they have Board of 
Health approval, which he will provide to Mr. McVicar.  The letters from the property owners were marked as exhibits.  
Mr. McVicar asked about his review letter.  Mr. Smildzens said the driveway will be crushed stone, not paved, with a  
concrete apron.  He had no problem with any other items in the letter.  Mr. Muraczewski stated this is subject to the 
growth share ordinance and Mr. Smildzens said it is a replacement home.  Mr. Muraczewski said it is applicable and Mr. 
Gertner agreed.  The money goes into the fund so the town can meet its affordable housing obligations.  Mr. Smildzens 
asked if the growth share ordinance was applicable if they add a bedroom to a home.  Mr. Muraczewski said this is for 
the new homes only, not for additions and it is in effect now.  Mr. Megill said this ordinance was supposed to be adopted 
two years ago and was not.  They are asking the State to look into it.  Mr. McVicar asked that the flood plain information 
from the FEMA map be put on the plans and the applicant agreed.  Mr. Megill said the VFW has turkey shoots in the fall 
and they shoot for 4-5 hours.  He wanted to make anyone who lives there aware of that so they don’t call and complain.  
Mr. Costanzo asked if applicant is aware of that and the owner said yes.  Ms. Maschuci said Ms. Posner may construct an 
addition instead of new construction in light of the growth share obligation.  Mr. Megill said that would require a new 
variance.  Ms. Harmer asked if she could put the growth share money into escrow while the State looks into it.  Mr. 
Megill said if more than 50% of the market value is constructed, it is considered a new home.  Ms. Harmer said if one 
existing wall stays up, then it is an addition.  Mr. Megill said then he does not have to pay the growth share money.  The 
attorney said they are going to look into the situation.  Peter Kitay, builder, sworn.  He was concerned about the added 
expense for the growth share fund and this is the first he is hearing about it.  He asked if the addition meets all the 
setbacks and she builds within the setbacks, could she build either the addition or the new home.  The professionals 
agreed.  Mr. Calogero said this would be an enhancement to the neighborhood.  The existing home is 700 square feet.  
Mr. Megill asked if the home includes the garage and was told yes.   
 
PUBLIC SESSION OPENED; No one came forward 
PUBLIC SESSION CLOSED, and Motion to approve by CALOGERO/Harmer.  YES:  Maher, Bowen, Calogero, 
Costanzo, LaBianca, Harmer, Sgro. 
 
Mr. Kitay said the $25,000 is added to the cost of the homes and residents are suffering.  Mr. Megill said this is State law 
and Mr. Gertner agreed.  Mr. Kitay said it should be appealed and Mr. Megill agreed.   
 

Number 8 was heard next, then Hess. 
 
Mr. Costanzo thanked Mr. Calogero for making copies of the Master Plan for all the Board members and for keeping 
them informed. 
 
Motion to adjourn at 10:15 p.m. by CALOGERO/Harmer.   YES:  By Affirmation. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Janice Kisty 
Zoning Board Recording Secretary 
 
 


